

## **DU PAGE COUNTY**

421 N. COUNTY FARM ROAD WHEATON, IL 60187 www.dupagecounty.gov

# **Legislative Committee Final Summary**

Tuesday, March 26, 2024

11:30 AM

**Room 3500B** 

\*\* 11:30 AM or Immediately Following County Board Meeting \*\*

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order by Chair Dawn DeSart at 11:30 AM.

#### 2. ROLL CALL

Additional Board Members present: Member Paula Deacon Garcia, Member Patty Gustin, Member Sheila Rutledge, Member Lucy Evans, and Member Yeena Yoo.

Staff present: Sheryl Markay (Chief Policy & Program Officer), Jason Blumenthal (Policy & Program Manager), Conor McCarthy (State's Attorney's Office), Mary Keating (Community Services Director) and Evan Shields (Public Information Officer).

PRESENT	Chaplin, Childress, DeSart, Eckhoff, and Zay
ABSENT	Galassi

#### 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

#### 3.A. **24-0996**

Legislative Minutes - Regular Meeting - Tuesday, March 5, 2024

RESULT: ACCEPTED
MOVER: Dawn DeSart
SECONDER: Liz Chaplin

#### 4. PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment received.

#### 5. CHAIR'S REMARKS - CHAIR DESART

Chair DeSart stated that she made her remarks during the County Board meeting.

#### 6. ACTION ITEMS

#### 6.A. **24-0997**

Action Item - Key Bill List 3-26-2024

Sheryl Markay briefly reviewed the bill list document and provided updates of each bill's progress. Multiple members asked questions and Ms. Markay answered.

Member Jim Zay raised concerns over SB3680 Local Crime-Free Housing Ordinance and requested additional information.

Member Yeena Yoo voiced her disappointment in hearing that HB4469/SB2633, Protection of Domestic Violence victims has stalled and mentioned two related bills: HB4753 Case Review - Homicide Victims and HB4754 Uniform Crime Report - Homicides.

RESULT: ACCEPTED

MOVER: Dawn DeSart

SECONDER: Liz Chaplin

#### 7. OLD BUSINESS

No old business was discussed.

#### 8. **NEW BUSINESS**

No new business was discussed.

#### 9. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:03 PM.

## Minutes



421 N. COUNTY FARM ROAD WHEATON, IL 60187 www.dupagecounty.gov



## **DU PAGE COUNTY**

421 N. COUNTY FARM ROAD WHEATON, IL 60187 www.dupagecounty.gov

# **Legislative Committee Final Summary**

Tuesday, March 5, 2024 11:30 AM Room 3500B

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order by Chair Dawn DeSart at 11:40 AM.

#### 2. ROLL CALL

Additional Board Members present: Member Paula Deacon Garcia, Member Patty Gustin, and Member Yeena Yoo.

Staff present: Sheryl Markay (Chief Policy & Program Officer), Jason Blumenthal (Policy & Program Manager), Conor McCarthy (State's Attorney's Office), and Evan Shields (Public Information Officer).

PRESENT	Chaplin, Childress, DeSart, Eckhoff, and Galassi
ABSENT	Zay

#### 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

#### 3.A. **24-0836**

Legislative Committee Minutes - Regular Meeting - Tuesday, February 27, 2024

RESULT: ACCEPTED

MOVER: Dawn DeSart

SECONDER: Liz Chaplin

#### 4. PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment received.

#### 5. CHAIR'S REMARKS - CHAIR DESART

Chair Dawn DeSart stated that she was here to facilitate a discussion.

#### 6. LEGISLATIVE PROGRAMS

#### 6.A. <u>LEG-R-0002-24</u>

Resolution Adopting the County's 2024 Federal Legislative Program

Chair Dawn DeSart opened the floor for discussion. The committee reviewed the four amendments provided. A consensus was made accepting Amendment #1 to be added to the "Protect the Environmental Health of our Communities" section of the 2024 DuPage County Federal Legislative Program.

After consensus on the first amendment, the committee moved on to discussing the proposed amendments relating to the "*Protect Our Residents from Gun Violence*" section of the 2024 DuPage County Federal Legislative Program. Once Amendments #2 and #3 were discussed, a consensus was found in merging the language from both and settling on a revised amendment.

Chair DeSart moved to amend the DuPage County Federal Legislative Program with the agreed upon changes. Member Chaplin seconded. A roll call was taken with all Ayes.

**RESULT:** APPROVED AT COMMITTEE

MOVER: Dawn DeSart SECONDER: Liz Chaplin

**AYES:** Chaplin, Childress, DeSart, Eckhoff, and Galassi

**ABSENT:** Zay

#### 7. OLD BUSINESS

No old business was discussed.

#### 8. NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

#### 9. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:23 PM.





File #: 24-0997 **Agenda Date:** 3/26/2024 Agenda #: 6.A.



Bill List March 26, 2024

(to view the full text of bills, please visit: www.ilga.gov)

#### 2024 State Agenda/Legislative Priorities

- HB 4455, Restoration of Local Government Distributive Fund (LGDF) Revenues (DeLuca, D-Chicago Heights): incrementally increases amounts transferred from the state's General Revenue Fund to LGDF to 10% of income tax revenues received. LGDF distributions fund critical county and municipal services. Following the enactment of the state income tax in 1969, 10% of total income tax collections were dedicated to LGDF for distribution however since 2011, the state has decreased the local government share of LGDF to 6.47% of individual income tax collections and 6.845% of corporate income tax collections in state FY 2024. DuPage County received \$15.2M in LGDF revenues in state FY 24.
  - Status: Revenue-Income Tax Subcommittee
- **HB 4469/SB 2633, Protection of Domestic Violence victims** (Hirschauer, D-West Chicago/Villanueva, D-Chicago): known as *Karina's Law*, the bill amends the Domestic Violence Act to remove firearms from accused domestic abusers when an order of protection is granted by the courts. The bill requires a court to issue a search warrant alongside an order of protection to permit law enforcement to remove any firearms, firearm ammunition and firearm parts from the respondent's residence.
  - o Status: HB 4469, House Judiciary Committee/SB 2633, Senate Subcommittee on Firearms
- **HB 4665, Mental Health Professional Grant** (LaPointe, D-Chicago): creates the Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder Professional Support Grant Program Act to provide grants to mental health facilities and substance use disorder treatment programs to recruit, retain, and compensate licensed mental health or substance use disorder professionals.
  - Status: House Mental Health & Addiction Committee
- HB 4666/SB 3593, Appropriation for Mental Health Professional Grant (LaPointe, D-Chicago/Fine, D-Glenview): appropriates \$40M to the Illinois Department of Human Services to support the Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder Professional Support Grant program to encourage more individuals to enter the behavioral health and substance use treatment workforce.
  - Status: HB 4666, House Appropriations Health & Human Services Committee/SB 3593, Senate Appropriations Health & Human Services
- HB 5574/SB 3269, Transfer of Impact Fee Funds (Howard, D-Glen Ellyn/Lewis, R-Carol Stream): a DuPage County initiative, the legislation would authorize the county to transfer remaining impact fee revenues to a transportation account to be used for capacity related improvements countywide. Last year, the County Board repealed its Impact Fee ordinance and the remaining funds (\$5.2M), may only be spent in the district it was collected, preventing the expenditure of some funds due to the lack of eligible projects in that district.

- Status: HB 5574, House 2<sup>nd</sup> Reading Short Debate/SB 3269, Senate Committee on Assignments
- SB 2609, Safe Gun Storage Information (Koehler, D-Peoria): requires a school board to include information on how a parent or guardian can safely store any firearms at home where other policies, rules, and standards concerning student conduct are posted and made available to parents and guardians.
  - Status: Senate Subcommittee on Firearms
- SB 2960/HB 4831, Reducing the use of Plastic (Fine, D-Glenview/Buckner, D-Chicago): creates the Small Single-Use Plastic Bottle Act to phase out the use of these items in Illinois hotels. Provides that beginning July 1, 2025, hotels with 50 rooms or more and, beginning January 1, 2026, hotels with less than 50 rooms may not provide small single-use plastic bottles containing personal care products to guests. The hotel industry is in favor of the legislation as the use of larger, refillable containers is less costly and also demonstrates the industry's commitment to sustainability initiatives and the environment.
  - o Status: SB 2960, Senate Calendar 3<sup>rd</sup> Reading/HB 4831, House Energy & Environment Committee
- SB 3077, Local Food Infrastructure (Koehler, D-Peoria): establishes a \$2M per year infrastructure grant program within the Illinois Department of Agriculture to enhance local food processing, aggregation, and distribution within the State. Projects that help move food from farms to communities such as food hubs, canneries, milling equipment, grading and packaging equipment, refrigerated trucks and milk processing would qualify. Eligible applicants include farms, co-ops, process facilities, and food businesses with fewer than 50 employees as well as local governments and non-profits. Although Illinois farmers, dairies, and ranchers produce significant amounts of food, 95% of the food we eat in Illinois is imported from out of state.
  - o Status: Senate Calendar 3<sup>rd</sup> Reading
- SB 3521, Behavioral Health Recovery Center Grant Pilot Program (Villa, D-West Chicago): a DuPage County Health Department initiative, the legislation requires the Illinois Department of Human Services to establish a 5-year pilot program to award a grant to one or more counties to develop and implement a behavioral health recovery center project. The county's health department will break ground in April on a Crisis Recovery Center located on the county campus to support those experiencing a mental health or substance use disorder crisis.
  - o Status: Senate Appropriations Health & Human Services Committee
- SB 3522, Medicaid Rates-Community Mental Health Centers (Villa, D-West Chicago): increases Medicaid rates for psychiatric evaluations and medication monitoring performed by community mental health centers and substance use disorder treatment providers and practitioners and provides for a CPI increase annually (not to exceed 5%) beginning in State Fiscal Year 2025. If adopted, this legislation would increase Medicaid rates for services and programs provided the DuPage County Health Department's Public Health Centers and for future services billed once the county's new Crisis Recovery Center (CRC) opens in 2025.
  - o Status: Senate Appropriations Health & Human Services Committee
- SB 3686/HB 5348, Battery Stewardship Act (Koehler, D-Peoria/Chung, D-Bloomington): creates the Portable and Medium Format Battery Stewardship Act to require those who sell, offer for sale, or distribute covered batteries or battery containing products to implement and participate in a battery stewardship plan as of January 1, 2026 (that encourages the recovery and reuse of materials such as metals that replace the output of mining and other extractive industries). A battery stewardship program

creates a collection system for portable batteries and end of life management (recycling) of the covered batteries.

- o Status: SB 3686, Senate Calendar 2<sup>nd</sup> Reading/House Calendar 2<sup>nd</sup> Reading
- HB 2900, Wildlife Killing Contests (Moeller, D-Elgin): prohibits a person from organizing, sponsoring, promoting, conducting, or participating in a contest, organized competition, or tournament with the objective of killing any fur-bearing mammal for cash, prizes, or other inducement. "Fur-bearing mammals" means the following specific species, mink, muskrat, raccoon, striped skunk, weasel, bobcat, opossum, beaver, river otter, badger, red fox, gray fox, and coyote.
  - o Status: House Calendar 2<sup>nd</sup> Reading

### **Recommend Support**

- **HB 4044, IEMA STARCOM21 Radio Network** (Mayfield, D-Waukegan): appropriates \$35M to the Illinois Emergency Management Agency for the STARCOM21 public safety communications network, a critical state asset that ensures DuPage County first responders can communicate with the State Police and other key agencies during crises and to protect the safety of our residents.
  - o Status: House Rules Committee (budget negotiation item)
- **HB 4440, Counties Code-Diversity Goals** (Davis, D-East Hazel Crest): provides that a county may establish goals to promote minority-owned and operated businesses, women-owned and operated businesses, businesses owned and operated by persons with disabilities, and businesses located within the county.
  - o Status: House Calendar 2<sup>nd</sup> Reading

#### SB3686 / HB5348 - Portable and Medium-Format Battery Stewardship Act

#### **Background:**

- This bill is crucial to preventing risk to public health and safety. Fires from improper disposal of lithium-ion batteries are increasingly occurring in waste and recycling vehicles and at facilities, risking injury or death to workers and the public.
- Consumers statewide will have convenient access to collection sites for proper management of all battery chemistries and be informed of the proper management practices for their unwanted batteries. By including all battery chemistries, consumer confusion is reduced and ease of collection is improved.
- Batteries contain toxic substances and valuable materials that can be reclaimed and recycled into the production of new batteries, avoiding environmental and emission impacts associated with mining of virgin materials.
- The battery stewardship program is an Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) policy similar to existing legislation for electronics, mercury thermostats, pharmaceuticals, and paint that have all been successfully enacted in Illinois.
- Battery producers support the bill and are using the language proposed in Illinois as a model for other states. The bill has been developed collaboratively with battery producers, IMA, IRMA, local government, and the waste and recycling industry and has the support of environmental groups.

#### **Key Provisions:**

- Battery producers must fund a convenient, accessible collection program for all consumers (including residents, businesses, government agencies, and non-profit organizations) to properly manage unwanted "covered batteries".
- "Covered batteries" include all chemistries and brands of batteries up to 25 pounds and 2,000 watt-hours (examples: AAA, AA, C, D, 9-volt batteries; button/coin batteries; power tool batteries; batteries that can be easily removed from electronic devices such as laptops; e-bike and electric scooter batteries; outdoor lawn equipment batteries).
  - Excludes certain medical device batteries, lead acid vehicle batteries, and batteries contained in products if the battery is not easy to remove.
  - Does NOT apply to larger batteries such as battery storage systems, photovoltaic units for solar energy systems, or EV batteries.
- Producer funding will cover all costs for battery collection, transportation, recycling / end-oflife management, education, reporting, and Agency administration.
- Producers, through a stewardship organization, must develop a plan documenting how all program requirements will be met and update it at least every 5 years.
- Collection will begin by 1/1/2026, with collection sites established by 12/31/2026.
- Performance goals for collection, recycling efficiency, and public awareness must be met.
- The stewardship organization must provide education and outreach to promote and raise awareness of the program, including linguistic and cultural considerations in the materials produced and giving consideration to environmental and social justice communities.
- The stewardship organization must submit an annual report and implement program improvements if goals are not met.